Haringey Counci NOTICE OF MEETING

Scrutiny Review — Post Office Closures

WEDNESDAY, 26TH MARCH, 2008 at 15:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors: Bull (Chair), Winskill (Vice-Chair), Alexander, Allison, Beynon,
Dobbie, C. Harris and Vanier

AGENDA
1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. Late
items will be considered under the agenda items where they appear. New items
will be dealt with at item 11 below.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the
authority at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the
existence and nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration,
or when the interest becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice
the member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their
financial position or the financial position of a person or body as described in
paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any
approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any
person or body described in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.



4,

7.

8.

9.

CHAIR’S WELCOME, OPENING REMARKS AND EXPLANATION OF
PROCESS (PAGES 1 -2)

The meeting will be in two parts — an afternoon and an evening session. The
afternoon session will focus on general issues relating to the proposed closures.
If residents have any questions that they wish to ask either the Post Office or
Postwatch, these can be submitted to the Chair in writing, either in advance or at
the meeting. The evening session will, within two separate groups, look at specific
issues relating to the effects of individual closures and provide an opportunity for
local residents and organisations to put their views forward. A more detailed
schedule for the meeting is attached.

SCOPING PAPER - SCRUTINY REVIEW OF POST OFFICE CLOSURES IN
HARINGEY (THE NATIONAL NETWORK CHANGE PROGRAMME) (PAGES 3 -
72)

To note the scope, process and terms of reference for the review, as approved by
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (report attached).

PRESENTATION BY POST OFFICE LTD
To receive a presentation from Post Office Ltd. on:

e The criteria and selection process for the six sub post offices in Haringey
planned for closure

e How conclusions were reached

e What modelling was undertaken to assess the impact of the proposed closures

e What the consequences will be of not undertaking some or all of the proposed
closures

e What the consultation programme with local people is.
PRESENTATION BY POST WATCH

To receive a presentation from Postwatch on their role and input into the
proposals and how local residents can influence them.

EVIDENCE FROM THE NATIONAL FEDERATION OF SUB POSTMASTERS

Following this item, there will be a short break.

EFFECT OF INDIVIDUAL CLOSURES ON LOCALITIES



The meeting will split into two separate groups, each chaired by a Member of the
Panel. Each group will look at 3 particular closures and include local stakeholders
relevant to them. They will, in particular, look at the following:

e How easy will it be to get to alternative post offices

e Possible other ways of obtaining services currently provided

¢ How the closures will affect local businesses, particularly shops

e The impact on vulnerable groups

The groups will be split as follows:

Group 1:

100, Alexandra Park Road. N10
Page Green, 100 Broad Lane, N15
434, West Green Road, N15

Group 2:

Salisbury Road, N22
69, Weston Park, N8
Ferme Park Road, N4

Pleased note that proposed closures within the same ward will be considered
together

10. PLENARY SESSION

The Scrutiny Panel will reconvene to consider;

e General evidence from the afternoon session

e Feedback from each of the two groups on specific closures

e Appropriate conclusions and recommendations to Post Office Ltd.

11. ANY LATE ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

Yuniea Semambo Rob Mack

Head of Local Democracy and Member Principal Scrutiny Support Officer
Services Tel: 020 8489 2921

River Park House e-mail: rob.mack@haringey.gov.uk
Wood Green

London N22 8HQ

17 March 2008



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4
X

=

Haringey

Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Panel Review of Post Office Closure Proposals

Meeting to be held in public

Wednesday 26 March 2008 — Civic Centre, Council
Chamber

The purpose of the meeting is to gather evidence on the impact that the closures will have
on local people and to recommend that Post Office Ltd. take them into account before
reaching a final decision on proposed closures in Haringey.

The meeting will consist of two sessions. The first session will look at the rationale behind
the proposals. Individuals may submit questions that they wish to ask the Post Office or
Postwatch in writing to the Chair either in advance or on the day. The second session will
examine the likely impact of each of the closure proposals and will provide the opportunity
for local residents and organisations to put their views forward.

Agenda - Afternoon Session
The afternoon session will look at the general issues concerned with the proposed post
office closures and the consultation process. Approximate timings will be as follows:

3:00 p.m. | Chair's welcome, opening remarks and explanation of process

3:05 p.m. | Presentation by Post Office Ltd on:

e The criteria and selection process for the 6 sub post offices in Haringey
planned for closure

e How conclusions were reached

e What modelling was undertaken to assess the impact of the proposed
closures

e What the consequences will be of not undertaking some or all of the
proposed closures

o \What the consultation programme with local people is.

3:15 p.m. | Presentation by Post Watch on their role and input into the proposals and how
local residents can influence them.

3:25 p.m. | ¢ Evidence from the National Federation of Sub Postmasters

3:35 p.m. | Questions to Post Office Ltd. and Postwatch by following (in order):
e Scrutiny Panel

e Local MPs

e Leader and Cabinet Members

e Ward and other Councillors

Other interested organisations

5:00 p.m. | Session ends




Page 2
Agenda - Evening Session

The evening session will focus on the individual closures and how they affect localities.
The meeting will split into two separate groups, each chaired by a Member of the Panel of
Councillors looking at the issue. Each group will look at 3 particular closures and include
local stakeholders relevant to them. They will, in particular, look at the following:

How easy will it be to get to alternative post offices

Possible other ways of obtaining services currently provided
How the closures will affect local businesses, particularly shops
The impact on vulnerable groups

The groups will be split as follows:

Group 1:

100, Alexandra Park Road. N10
69, Weston Park, N8

Ferme Park Road, N4

Group 2:

Salisbury Road, N22

Page Green, 100 Broad Lane, N15
434, West Green Road, N15

Pleased note that proposed closures within the same ward will be considered together.

Approximate timings will be as follows:

5:30 p.m. | Introduction by Chair of each Group

Group 1: Group 2:

5:40 p.m. | 100, Alexandra Park Road N10 Salisbury Road N22

6:10 p.m. | 69, Weston Park, N8 and Ferme Park | Page Green, 100 Broad Lane, N15
Road, N4 and 434, West Green Road, N15

7:10 p.m. | Break

7:20 p.m. | Plenary session. The Scrutiny Panel will reconvene to consider;

e General evidence from the afternoon session

e Feedback from each of the two groups on specific closures

e Appropriate conclusions and recommendations to Post Office Ltd.

8:00 p.m. | Close




Page 3 Agenda Item 5

Haringey Counci [ No .]

Agenda item:

Overview & Scrutiny Committee On 17™ March 2008

Report Title: Scoping Paper - Scrutiny Review of Post Office Closures in Haringey (the
national Network Change Programme)

Report of: Clir Gideon Bull, Chair of Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Wards(s) affected: Noel Park, Report for: Non Key
Tottenham Green, Stroud Green &
Alexandra / ALL

1. Purpose (That is, the decision required)

1.1 To approve the scope and terms of reference for the Scrutiny Review of the proposed
Post Office closures in Haringey.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the proposed terms of reference and work-plan for the review be approved.

2.2 That, in view of the need to submit a response to the consultation before the next
meeting of the Committee on 7 April, the Assistant Chief Executive (Policy,
Performance, Partnerships and Communication Service) be delegated authority to
approve the final report of the review panel of Members set up to consider the issue,
in consultation with the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the opposition
spokesperson.

Report Authorised by: Clir Gideon Bull, Chair of Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Contact Officer: Rob Mack, Principal Officer, Overview & Scrutiny 0208 489 2921
rob.mack@haringey.gov.uk

3. Chief Financial Officer Comments
3.1 [click here to type]

4. Head of Legal Services Comments

This Scrutiny review will take place within GLA pre- election period. Enhanced restrictions
on local authority publicity during an election period are imposed by the Code of Practice
on Local Authority Publicity published under the Local Government Act 1986. During this
period the Council should not engage in publicity surrounding controversial issues that
may feature in the election nor must they give a platform for party political views that may




Page 4

have a bearing on election issues. The issue of post office closures is a potential issue in
the forthcoming GLA elections. Members should recognise this and pay close attention to
their terms of reference, being careful not to engage in any debate concerning the need
for change or the principle of closures, concentrating instead on consideration of the local
impact of the London Local Area Plan

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
Network Change Programme: London Area Proposal Plan (Post Office Ltd, 2008)

Post Offices in London: future directions (London Assembly, July 2007)
The Post Office Network: Government response to the public consultation (DTI, 2007).
The Post Office Network: A consultation document (DTI, 2006)

All reports can be obtained by contacting Rob Mack, Overview & Scrutiny: 0208 489
2921 rob.mack@haringey.gov.uk

Introduction

6.

Initial proposals for the modernisation and restructuring of the national post office
network were published by the Government in December 2006. Subsequent to public
consultation on these proposals, Post Office Ltd was required to implement a
programme of 2,500 compensated closures across the national post office network. In
February 2008, Post Office Ltd published the London Local Area Plan which provided
details of the planned post office closures across the Greater London region. This
contained proposals for the closure of six post offices in Haringey.

Proposals for the London Local Area Plan are open for public consultation over a 6
week period (February 19" 2008 through to April 2" 2008). The following report
provides background to the proposed post office closures and an overview of the
national and local consultation processes. The report also describes the objectives
and methods that will be used for the proposed scrutiny review of the post office
closures in Haringey. Explicitly, the report details how the scrutiny review will gather
evidence on the impact that the proposed closures will have in Haringey; on residents,
businesses and within the wider community. It is anticipated that the findings and
recommendations from this review will form part of Haringey Councils response to the
London Local Area Plan consultation.

National Background

8.

The Post Office network currently consists of approximately 14,300 post offices. 97%
of these are franchised and are run as private businesses; the remainder
(approximately 465 offices) are directly managed by the Post Office Ltd and are known
as Crown Post Offices. Aside from postal services, post offices provide a number of
key services including access to pensions and welfare benefits, access to other
government agencies (i.e. passport, driving license), banking facilities and bill payment
services. It is estimated that there are 24 million visits to the Post Office network each
week (Postwatch, 2008)

Technological advancements, social and cultural changes as well as economic

constraints continue to shape the size of the Post Office network and the nature of the
services it provides. More people now use e-mail instead of letters, bills are more

Page 2 of 8



Page 5

commonly paid by direct debit or internet banking than through over the counter
services and 75% of all welfare benefits are now paid directly in to people’s bank
accounts instead of cashed through benefit books at the post office (DTI, 2006). As a
result of these and other changes, there were 4 million fewer visits to post offices in
2006 than in 2004 (DTI, 2006).

10.These and other developments have impacted on the financial viability of individual

1.

post offices and on the profitability of the post office network as a whole. In 2005,
1,600 branches served fewer than 20 customers per day, losing £8 for every
transaction made (DTI, 2006). Post Office Ltd averaged a £100million operating loss
each year from 2003-2007 and is currently operating a £4million loss each week (DTI,
2006). This has proved a key driver for change within the post office network.

National Consultation

In December 2006, the government presented proposals to restructure and modernise
the Post Office network to ensure the future sustainability of a national network of post
offices (Appendix A). These proposals highlighted the key challenges faced by the
Post Office network, emphasised the important role that Post Offices provide within the
community and reaffirmed a commitment to retaining a national Post Office network.
The overarching aim of the proposals was to present a planned approach in developing
a sustainable national network of post offices.

12.Within these proposals, it was recommended that up to 2,500 compensated closures

should take place across the national network of post offices. Additionally, to help stem
financial losses, proposals were also put forward to franchise a limited number of
offices within Crown Post Office network. Other elements within the government
proposals were:
= 500 outreach services in rural areas affected by closures
= Allow the Post Office to expand business opportunities
= £1.7 billion funding to 2011 (for compensation of sub post masters, maintenance
of social network subsidy, development of outreach services and forecast Post
Office losses to 2011)
= Intention to devolve greater responsibility and flexibility for funding of post office
services to the local level.

13. The consultation also established minimum access criteria that would be used by Post

Office Ltd to determine those post offices that should be closed and to shape the future
national network of Post Offices. These were specified as thus:
= Nationally, 95% of the population to be within 3 miles and 90% of the population
to be within 1 mile of a post office
= 99% of the population in urban deprived areas' to be within 1 mile of a post
office
=  95% of total urban population to be within 1 mile of their nearest post office
»  95% of rural population to be within 3 miles of their nearest post office.

14.The national public consultation closed in March 2007 with no significant changes

reported to those original proposals set out above (DTI, 2007). Post Office Ltd was
therefore expected to implement a programme of post offices closures and franchising
(called the Network Change Programme). Within this programme, Post Office Ltd was

' Urban deprived defined as ‘15% most deprived areas in the UK'.

Page 3 of 8



Page 6

required to develop Local Area Plans which detailed those post offices identified for
closure based on applying the minimum access criteria. In addition, to inform decisions
around post offices closures, Post Office Ltd was required to consult with Postwatch,
Sub Postmasters, Local Authorities and Regional Development Agencies.

15. Individual Local Area Plans were then to be published in a rolling programme of
consultations within the Network Change Programme (commenced in October 2007).
Post Office Ltd was required to conduct 6 week public consultations for each Local
area Plan.

London Area Plan

16.The London Area Plan (Appendix B) is the 19™ consultation to be undertaken in the
national Network Change Programme. The Plan proposes to maintain a network of
681 post offices within the London region and to close 169 post offices across the 33
London Boroughs. This equates to 5.1 post office closures per Borough (4.6 Inner
London, 5.5 outer London). Plans were also put forward to franchise 4 post offices
within the Crown Post Office network. There are no proposals for replacement
outreach services in the London Area Plan.

17.The Plan states that minimum access criteria have been used to develop proposals for
the identified post office closures in London (as set out in para 13). In addition, the
consultation documentation indicates that other criteria have been taken into account in
developing proposals for individual post office closures:

» Proximity of Post Office branches proposed for closure to nearby branches

Physical obstacles which may affect access to alternative branches

Availability of public transport to alternative branches

Alternative access to key Post Office services

Local demographics

Impact on local economies.

The number of customers using branches proposed for closure

The size and ability of nearby branches to absorb extra customers

Commercial implications of any decision for Post Office Ltd.

18.The London Area Plan has proposed that 6 post offices be closed in Haringey and that
one is franchised:
Proposed Closures Franchise
100, Alexandra Park Road. N10 Tottenham, 825 High Road
Page Green, 100 Broad Lane, N15
434, West Green Road, N15
Salisbury Road, N22
69, Weston Park, N8
Ferme Park Road, N4

19.Individual branch access reports have been produced for each of the planned closures
(Appendix C). These reports provide detailed information on the services provided at
each of the planned closure and the relative accessibility of the nearest two alternative
post office sites. A map showing the geographical location of the proposed post office
closures in Haringey and the remaining post office network (against socio-economic
deprivation) is contained in Appendix D.

Consultation on the London Area Plan

Page 4 of 8



Page 7

20.The consultation for proposals within the London Area Plan commenced on February
19™ 2008 and end 2™ April 2008 (6 weeks). A memorandum of understanding
between Post Office Ltd and Postwatch has been drawn up to guide and inform the
consultation process (Postwatch, 2008a). This memorandum stipulates that there will
be three phases within local consultations:

Phase Consultation activity
Pre Public = Post Office Ltd to provide Postwatch with first draft proposals
Consultation = Post Office apply issues and information from pre consultation
(complete) = Postwatch advise on proposals and assist in developing Local Area
Plan
Public = Post Office Ltd ensure appropriate distribution of proposals
Consultation = Postwatch ensure that appropriate bodies and individuals are
(19" February - consulted
2" April) = Consultation responses shared with Postwatch
Post Public = Post Office Ltd produce a final Area Pan based on consultation
Consultation response
= Postwatch may instigate a review process for specific closures
where it feels full consideration has not been given to evidence
within the consultation
= Postwatch does not have the power of veto over any closures

21.The memorandum of understanding between Post Office Ltd and Postwatch contains
important guidance for the consultation process which should guide and inform
responses and submissions:
= Post Office Ltd is not consulting on the need to change as this has been
undertaken within the national consultation
» Post Office Ltd is consulting on the most effective way that Government policy
can be implemented in a particular area
= Consultation should encourage responses on the accessibility of nearest
available services given the proposed changes

22. As Post Office Ltd has been asked by the Government to close up to 2,500 branches,
where a proposed closure is withdrawn as a result of the public consultation, the area
plan will remain live until Post Office Ltd has reassessed the options available. Post
Office Ltd can:

= Replace the withdrawn closure with another proposed for closure within the
area;
= Replace the withdrawn closure with a proposed outreach service;
= Continue with the area plan less one closure.
(Postwatch 2008)
Terms of reference and objectives for the scrutiny review

23.1t is proposed that a scrutiny review of the proposed post office closures in Haringey be
undertaken by the Overview & Scrutiny Committee. The proposed terms of reference
for the review are thus:

‘To gather evidence on the social and economic impact of the proposed post
office closures in Haringey and the impact that this will have on customers,
residents and businesses in those areas affected and to present this as part of
Haringey’s submission to the consultation for the London Area Plan.’

Page 5 of 8



Page 8

24.Within the terms of reference, it is suggested that the scrutiny review aim to fulfil the
following specific objectives:

» To obtain information and comment on the criteria used to identify post offices
intended for closure and its application within Haringey.

= To obtain evidence from interested parties of the impact that the planned post
office closures will have on Haringey residents, businesses and in the wider
community and how they will affect future access to post office services in
Haringey

» To identify future processes for facilitating a sustainable post office network in
Haringey.

Key stakeholders

25.A number of key stakeholders have been identified as possible informants to the

review:

= Post Office Ltd = | ocal Councillors (those = Leader of Council and
representatives affected by closures) Cabinet Members

= Post Watch = All other local = Local MPs
representatives Councillors

= National Federation of = Sub Postmasters of = Age Concern
Sub Postmasters those post offices

proposed for closure
Residents Associations = Citizens Advice Bureau
General Public » Representatives from other local interest groups and
leading voluntary organisations

Membership Panel

26. It is proposed that there be 8 Members of the review Panel comprising of 4 Labour
Councillors and 4 Liberal Democrats. The Panel will be chaired by ClIr Bull as Chair of
Overview & Scrutiny Committee and the Vice Chair will be Councillor Winskill. The full
membership of the review Panel is thus:

= Clir Bull (Chair)

Clir Mallett

Clir Harris (Catherine)

Clir Dobbie

Clir Winskill (Vice Chair)

Clir Sara Beynon

Clir Rachel Allison

Another Liberal Democrat Member (tba)

Evidence Session

27. Given the duration of the consultation period for the post office closures it would be
impracticable to hold a series of evidence sessions for this scrutiny review. It is
therefore proposed that a full day long scrutiny review is held to allow the necessary
evidence to be obtained to complete the review.

28. The scrutiny event is planned to take place on the 26™ March (from 3pm) and will hear
evidence from key stakeholders, local interest groups and individuals affected by the

Page 6 of 8



Page 9

closures (as in 25). The day is divided in to two sessions. Session one will focus on
obtaining evidence from key stakeholders and will allow the Panel to question
informants the planned post office closures in Haringey. Session two will operate on a
workshop format, which will allow evidence to be collected on the impact of individual
post office closures. A full programme of the scrutiny event is contained within
Appendix E.

Sources of Evidence

29. In addition to oral evidence to the Panel, the review will consider other sources of

evidence including:

= National guidance and targets (Department of Business, Enterprise &
Regulatory Reform)

= Reports and documentation from other representative bodies (Local
Government Association, London Councils, Greater London Assembly, London
Mayors Office)

= Research documentation (Postwatch, Postcomm)

= Local demographic profiles and statistics

= |Interviews with a range of stakeholders including the PCT, local GPs and Social
Services.

Outcomes

30. Utilising the evidence obtained from the scrutiny event and other sources of evidence

31.

submitted to the panel, it is intended that a full scrutiny review report will be produced.
This review will contain a summary of the main findings of the review and detail
recommendations to be considered within the consultation for the London Local Area
Plan for post office closures.

Procedure for Authorising the Report

Given the time limitations imposed by the 6 week consultation period for the London
Area Plan and the fact that the consultation deadline (2 April) falls before the next
meeting of the Committee, it will be necessary for the final report to be approved by the
Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Performance, Partnerships and Communication
Service) under delegated authority, in consultation with the Chair and Opposition
Spokesperson.

Timescale

32.An outline of the proposed timeframe for the completion of the review is tabled below.

17" March | Overview & Scrutiny = Approve terms of reference
Committee = Confirm Panel

17" -26"™ | Overview & Scrutiny = Confirm attendees

March Service = Background briefing

= Event preparation

26" March | Scrutiny Review Meeting » Panel to receive evidence from
stakeholders
» Panel to collate evidence on

Page 7 of 8



Page 10

planned closures
Panel to form conclusions &
recommendations

26™ March | Completion of review = Collation of evidence for
- 2" April individual closures
» Report writing
Procedures for = Report authorised by Chair
authorising the final and opposition Chief Whip
report
Wednesday | Post Office Ltd = Submission of review to the
2" April consultation
References:

Postwatch 2008

Postwatch 2008a

Post Office Ltd 2008

Post Office Ltd 2008a

DTI, 2006

http://www.postwatch.co.uk/

Memorandum of Understanding between Post Office Ltd
and Postwatch in respect of the consultation process that

will apply to the Network Change Programme.

Network Change Programme: London Area Plan

Branch Access Report
ftp://ftp.royalmail.com/Downloads/public/ctf/po/London area

A3 Branch Access Reports 3.pdf

Post Office Network: A consultation Document
Department of Trade & Industry

Page 8 of 8




du

THE POST OFFICE NETWORK

A consultation
document

DECEMBER 2006



Page 12



Page 13

Why the DTl Is
conducting this
consultation

Post offices play an important social and economic role in the communities they
serve. With new technology, changing lifestyles and a wider choice of accessing
services, people are visiting post offices less. The network’s losses have risen
to almost £4 million a week this year and it is unsustainable in its present form.
But it remains the Government’s priority to maintain a national post office
network with national coverage.

To achieve this, a new policy and financial framework is now needed and the
Government is seeking views on its future proposals.

Issued
Respond by
Enquiries to
Address

Email

14 December 2006

8 March 2007

Post Office Network Consultation,
Department of Trade and Industry,
Response Centre,

1 Victoria Street,

London, SW1H OET
dti.enquiries@dti.gsi.gov.uk



Page 14



Page 15

Contents

Introduction

Summary of Government Proposals

How to Respond

Section 1: A National Network

Section 2: The Challenges

Section 3: The Need for Change

Section 4: The Future Shape of the Network
Section 5: A Restructured National Network
Section 6: Conclusions

Questions

Annex A Consultation Code of Practice
Annex B Consultation Response Form

Annex C  List of organisations consulted

11
14
16
22
25
27
28
29
33



Page 16

Introduction

Post offices provide a key service in our villages, towns and cities. A national
network is essential and it has a social value as well as an economic role.

This is why we have invested over £2 billion since 1999 to support it. That
support will continue. We are prepared to make substantial further funding
available over the next five years to keep the network national and to help the
company make the necessary changes to transform the network and put it on
a stable footing for the future.

Post offices face a long-term challenge. From online services, e-mail, phone and
Internet banking, direct debit, text messaging — people are increasingly choosing
to live their lives in different ways. Some 4 million fewer people are using their
post office each week than two years ago. The network lost £2 million every
single week last year, rising to £4 million this year. That can't go on.

Those who run these businesses know that better than anyone. That is why the
National Federation of Subpostmasters and the all-party Trade and Industry
Select Committee have recognised that the current size of the network of over
14,000 offices as ‘unsustainable’.

To create a sustainable network, we want to enable Post Office Ltd to
modernise, to restore Crown offices to profitability, to invest in new product
offerings and to look at innovative ways to deliver the services that people
need. It will mean changes to the size of the network, but we will work with
and protect vulnerable communities making sure that the right services are in
the right place. For example where a subpostmaster provides ‘Outreach’
services to nearby small communities.

A national network on a strong, stable footing to meet the challenges of today.
That is what the country needs. That is what our proposals aim to deliver.



Page 17

Summary of the
Government's
proposals for the
Post Office network

e \We intend to make substantial further funding available over the five years to
2011. This will support the necessary restructuring and modernisation of the
network to put it on a more stable footing and provide ongoing support for
the social network up to current levels. There will be a need for an ongoing
subsidy of the social network beyond 2011.

e \We propose to introduce new access criteria for the national Post Office
network which includes criteria to protect vulnerable consumers in deprived
urban areas and rural and remote areas.

— Nationally, 99% within 3 miles and 90% of the population to be within
Tmile;

— In deprived urban areas’, 99% of the population to be within 1 mile;
— In urban areas, 95% of the population to be within 1 mile;
— In rural areas, 95% of the total rural population within 3 miles.

— In remote areas, 95% of the population in postcode districts? within
6 miles.

— Across the country as a whole there cannot be a ‘one size fits all’
approach to access criteria. In applying them, Post Office Ltd will take
account of local conditions such as rivers, mountains, valleys, motorways
and sea crossings to islands.

e The proposed new access criteria are in recognition of the important social
role that post offices play in communities across the country.

e A national network is necessary to ensure that people have access to cash
and benefits especially in remote areas.

1 deprived urban communities are those in the 10% most deprived super output areas as
identified by the Indices of Multiple Deprivation

2 a postcode district is the first part of the postcode e.g. SL9. There are 2,795 nationwide of
which 38 do not currently meet this criterion. These 38 will continue to be exempt but we will
not allow any further postcode districts to be exempt.



The Post Office Network Page 1 8

e The current Post Office card account (POca) contract ends in March 2010.
The Government has considered and decided that it will continue with a new
account after 2010. This will be available nationally and customers will be
eligible for the account on the same basis as they are now.

e We recognise the important social and economic role of post offices and
we are committed to maintaining a national network but we also recognise
that some restructuring will be necessary to put it on a firmer, more
sustainable footing.

e \We will provide support for a restructuring of the network with up to 2500
closures within that framework which will maintain a national network.
Subpostmasters leaving the network under the restructuring programme
will be compensated. We expect that Post Office Ltd will implement this
process over an 18 month period from summer 2007, giving priority to
protecting vulnerable communities in villages, towns and cities.

e \We also intend to provide support for Post Office Ltd to open new Qutreach
locations to provide access to services for small remote communities by
building on the success of the pilot trials including mobile post offices and
post offices hosted in other locations such as village halls, community
centres or pubs.

e We will provide support to enable Post Office Ltd to expand into new areas
of business including the development of its new financial services products,
such as savings and insurance, and provide finance to restructure and
modernise and restore the network of Crown post offices to profitability
transforming them into flagships of the Post Office brand alongside a
number of closures and continued franchising through link-ups with
experienced retailers.

e Post Office Ltd plan to develop new market and business opportunities for
the network among Internet companies and other mail operators. For
example, a key area of opportunity currently being trialled is to provide
customers with the ability to pick up parcels they have ordered through mail
order companies or via Internet services from post office counters. The
company is also planning a rapid roll-out of up to 4,000 free to use ATMs
across the network.

e For the longer term beyond 2011, we propose to investigate what role Local
Authorities in England and the Devolved Administrations in Scotland, Wales
and Northern Ireland might play in influencing how the postal services are
best delivered in the future.



Page 19

How to Respond

The Department of Trade and Industry invites views on any aspect raised in this
document and, in particular, where views have been specifically requested.

This consultation opened on 14 December 2006. The last date for responses is
8 March 2007.

When responding please state whether you are responding as an individual or
representing the views of an organisation. If responding on behalf of an
organisation, please make it clear who the organisation represents and, where
applicable, how the views of members were assembled. Written responses can
be submitted by letter, fax or (preferably) e-mail to:

Postal Office Network Consultation
Department of Trade and Industry
Response Centre

Victoria Street

London

SW1H OET

Fax: 00 44 (0) 20 7215 5329
E-mail: dti.enquiries@dti.gsi.gov.uk

A copy of the consultation response form is enclosed at Annex B. The
Department will also be able to arrange for hard copies, or other languages or
copies in Braille to be provided if necessary. Further copies of the electronic
consultation document and the response form can be obtained from the DTI
website — http://www.dti.gov.uk/consultations/index.html

A list of those organisations and individuals consulted is at Annex C. We would
welcome suggestions for others who you think may wish to be involved in this
consultation process.



The Post Office Network Page 20

Confidentiality

Information provided in response to this consultation, including personal
information, may be subject to publication or disclosure in accordance with the
access to information regimes (these are primarily the Freedom of Information
Act 2000 (FOIA), the Data Protection Act 1998 (DPA) and the Environmental
Information Regulations 2004). If you want other information that you provide
to be treated as confidential, please be aware that, under the FOIA, there is a
statutory Code of Practice with which public authorities must comply and which
deals, amongst other things, with obligations of confidence.

In view of this it would be helpful if you could explain to us why you regard
the information you have provided as confidential. If we receive a request for
disclosure of the information we will take full account of your explanation,
but we cannot give an assurance that confidentiality can be maintained in all
circumstances. An automatic confidentiality disclaimer generated by your IT
system will not, of itself, be regarded as binding on the Department.

The Department will process your personal data in accordance with the DPA and
in the majority of circumstances this will mean that your personal data will not
be disclosed to third parties.

Complaints

If you have any comments or complaints about the way this consultation has
been conducted, these should be sent to:

Mary Smeeth

Consultation Co-ordinator
Department of Trade and Industry
Bay 4110

1 Victoria Street

London

SW1H OET

E-mail Mary.Smeeth@dti.gsi.gov.uk
Tel 00 44 (0) 20 7215 2146

See Annex A for the Consultation Code of Practice
Additional copies
You may make copies of this document without seeking permission.

Queries

Queries on the issues raised in this consultation should be addressed to the DTI
Response Centre at the contact details above.

[If you foresee any unintended consequences or other implications of our
proposals please let us know what you believe these may be.]



Page 21

Section 1:

A National Network

The Post Office network plays an important social and economic role in the
communities it serves. The Government has made substantial investment

of over £2 billion in the network since 1999 and it will continue to maintain
a national post office network.

1.1

1.2

1.3

From a peak of some 25,000 offices in the mid-1960s, the network began
to decline in size as early as 1970 and has continued to do so since then
with some 6,000 ad hoc closures having taken place by 1997. Until the
first restructuring of the network on a managed basis under the Urban
Reinvention programme between 2002 and 2005 and the introduction of
a £150 million annual subsidy for the rural network in 2003 there was no
policy or support to help the network adapt to wider changes in society.

Since 1999, the Government has made a very substantial investment in
the Post Office network of more than £2 billion to help it adapt to the
changing needs of customers and to the marketplace in which it operates.
This included £500 million investment in the Horizon project to bring
modern computer systems into every post office in the country for the
first time — enabling Post Office Ltd to launch a range of new products and
to open its counters to potentially over 20 million bank customers. It also
includes the funding of £150 million a year, £750 million in total, to support
the rural network for five years from 2003 to 2008.

A key element of this approach has been Government'’s recognition of the
important social and economic role post offices play in the communities
they serve and particularly among the more vulnerable customer groups
who rely on them as a lifeline. Because of the depth of its geographic
reach, the Post Office network is uniquely placed to provide key services
including access to cash and benefits, bill payment facilities as well as to
postal services in remote areas.



Page 22

The Post Office Network

1.4 Maintaining a national network with national coverage remains our priority
and we therefore want to enable Post Office Ltd to modernise and refresh
the network to tackle the challenges of the future, so that the network

remains well used.



Page 23

Section 2:

The Challenges

With new technology, changing habits and a wider choice of accessing
services, people are visiting their post offices less often. Some 4 million

fewer people are using the post office each week than two years ago.
The network lost £2 million each week last year, rising to £4 million
this year.

2.1

2.2

2.3

The market in which the Post Office network operates has changed
beyond recognition over the last ten to fifteen years. Traditionally, the post
office was where people went to post a letter, to pay their utility bills and
to collect their benefits. Many still do. But increasing numbers of people
choose to send an e-mail or text; pay bills by direct debit or Internet
banking; and have benefits paid into their bank accounts. Stamps (which
were once synonymous with the Post Office) can today be bought in
50,000 other retail outlets. They can even be bought, and personalised,
over the Internet.

The way people choose to access their money, pay their bills or use
government services is changing. 75% of all benefit recipients now
choose to have their payments made into bank accounts. Nationally,

8.7 million out of a total of 11.2 million pensioners now get their pensions
paid into a bank account. Online access to other services is proving very
popular: for example over 3 million people have renewed their motor
vehicle licence online this year. Clearly customers have embraced these
new methods of payments which they find flexible and convenient.

As a result of this new technology, changing habits and lifestyles and
wider choice of accessing services, people are visiting their post offices
less and less. Though post offices served 24 million customers each week
last year, some 4 million fewer customers visited a post office branch
each week than two years earlier.



The Post Office Network Page 24

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

If the network is to survive it must face up to the very real challenge of
adapting to the different ways people are choosing to access services.
Post Office Ltd has made major strides in developing new areas of
business such as financial services and telecommunications offerings to
help offset declining demand for traditional products and services, but a
substantial and growing gap remains between revenues and the costs of
maintaining the network.

The Government is providing a social network subsidy of £150 million a
year to support rural offices. With an average of 7 million customers a
week using the rural network this represents and annual subsidy of just
over £20. Despite this the network still lost on average £2 million a week
last year with total losses of £100 million over the year before taking the
social network payment into account. In the current financial year, losses
are forecast to reach around £4 million every week or £200 million over
the year and to meet Post Office Ltd's cash requirements, the
Government's total funding will amount to more than £7 million a week.

The post office network is by far the largest nationwide retail network in
the country compared with other commercial networks as shown in the
table below. It has 8 times more branches than Tesco, and more branches
than all the other UK banks put together. As those companies are
constantly innovating and competing to offer more services, they present
a constant challenge to the Post Office network. The network'’s scale of
coverage, heavily underpinned by public subsidy, is a considerable asset,
but nevertheless the costs associated with maintaining it make it
increasingly hard for Post Office Ltd to compete effectively for business
against lower cost, more flexible competitors.

Size of Retail and Bank Branch Networks

15,000 14,300

11,025

1,400 1,500 1,520 1,700 1,780 2.270 2,060 1,790 1,570 1,065 725

< & O o T A e
2 F o R (OIS N GRS R SO e SO SN
& F & F F T FNE R
i o > ¥ & S
Ab & o D

With the exception of the 480 Crown post offices, all other post offices
are privately owned and operate as agencies or franchises under contract
with Post Office Ltd. Historically these branches have been located where
the subpostmaster chose to set up in business rather than on a strategic
decision on the part of Post Office Ltd. Over time this has left an
oversized network not always best placed to serve its customers or to
exploit available commercial opportunities.



2.8

2.9

2.10

Page 25

The Challenges

In both rural and urban areas, too many branches are competing for the
same customers and some branches are hardly used at all. Last year, on
average the 800 smallest rural post offices served just 16 people a week
at a cost to the taxpayer, whatever the level of transaction, of £17 per
visit. 1,600 branches served fewer than 20 customers a day and losing
£8 for every transaction they made. More than half the rural network has
fewer than 500 customers each week and more than 80% of the rural
network is unprofitable to Post Office Ltd.

Although Post Office Ltd's Urban Reinvention Programme helped to
reduce levels of over-provision in some urban areas where there were t00
many offices competing for the customers available for them all to thrive
as businesses. It is clear that with viability continuing to decline, more
needs to be done to place the urban network on a sustainable footing and
to protect the overall geographical reach of the network.

In addition to the branches operated by subpostmasters, Post Office Ltd
directly operates and manages some 500 Crown post offices, mainly in
the centre of our towns and cities. These Crown Offices conduct a fifth of
all Post Office Ltd business. But last year they lost £50 million (and are
expected to lose £70 million this year), with the agency offices located in
deprived urban areas collectively losing a further £5 million.



Page 26

Section 3:

Need for Change

The network is unsustainable in its present form. It needs to adopt more
flexible and cost effective ways of delivering services and responding to
customers’ needs.

3.1  There is now widespread consensus between Post Office Ltd, the
National Federation of Subpostmasters, Postcomm and Postwatch that
change is needed to modernise and adapt the Post Office network to
meet the needs of customers in today's digital age. The recent all party
Trade and Industry Committee also recognised that consensus reporting in
its Ninth Report published on 30 October 2006 that “There appears to be
widespread, if reluctant, acceptance among our witnesses that a network
of 14,500 branches is unsustainable.”?

3.2 ltis clear that the Post Office Network has a continuing and important role
for the future. It provides one of several channels for delivery of
Government services. It acts as a social hub in many areas.

3.3 On a purely commercial basis it would not be possible for Post Offices to
continue to play these roles. Post Office Ltd has indicated that a purely
commercial network would comprise only around 3,600-4,000 offices.
Recognising the social role played by post offices, however, the
Government believes there is a need to retain a national network beyond
what is affordable on a purely commercial basis. In order to do this in a
way that is sustainable for the future Post Office Ltd will need to adopt
new, more flexible ways of delivering its services which are able to
respond to the changing needs of its customers.

3 Link to the Trade and Industry Ninth Report on Royal Mail Group can be found at:
http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm200506/cmselect/cmtrdind/1556/155602.htm



Page 27

Need for Change

3.4 A national network is required which provides for those in need, delivers

3.5

3.6

3.7

services more cost-effectively, adopts innovative methods to better align
demand and supply and which ensures convenient access for
communities with real social need.

Where there is over provision threatening the livelihoods of
subpostmasters this needs to be addressed. Where full-time offices exist
to serve small customer numbers alternative ways of delivering services,
such as the partner deals with other businesses or mobile units trialled by
Post Office Ltd over the last 18 months, need to be considered.

We intend to provide support to enable Post Office Ltd to halt the losses
from the Crown Office network and to modernise and improve the service
offering these offices provide to customers. To fulfil its role as the
commercial core of the business, the Crown office network must be
restored to profitability. This will involve franchising some of these
operations. But it is recognised that a core network of Crown offices is
key to delivering transformation of the business and helping Post Office
Ltd develop a strong presence in new areas of business. This will be
achieved through a programme of refurbishment and investment.

Continuing Government support has to be aimed at enabling Post Office
Ltd to modernise the way that it delivers services to its customers and to
provide a stable platform for the future while keeping a national network.



Page 28

Section 4:

T

ne Future Shape

O

" the Network

We will maintain a national network with national coverage — ensuring

adeq

4.1

4.2

4.3

uate safeguards for those most in need.

There is a need for a national Post Office network providing reasonable
access to all communities, including those in remote areas. Post offices
provide a valuable service for the vulnerable in our society (particularly the
elderly, disabled and socially excluded) and it is important that the network
continues to do so.

However, Post Office Ltd's financial position is critical and continues to
deteriorate. There is wide recognition that there are no quick or easy
solutions to the core problem of bridging the gap between costs and
revenues. Government recognises the urgent need to put in place a
financial package to modernise and restructure the network placing it on
a stable footing.

The Government is therefore intending to make a further substantial
investment to put the network on a stable footing by 2011. The
Government's objectives for any restructuring of the network are as
follows:

e To keep a national network national, paying particular attention to
the needs of remote rural and deprived urban communities across
the country within the framework of clear and understandable
standards of access to post office services;

e To focus on services to customers rather than bricks and mortar
and to introduce more flexible, innovative ways of providing
services for remote communities, for example, mobile post offices
and other Outreach models using modern technology;

e To invest in new equipment and automation to modernise the
service delivery to customers in the major Crown offices —
transforming them into flagships of the Post Office brand,;



4.4

4.5

4.6

Page 29Fhe Future Shape of the Network

e To focus on a range of products and services that customers
expect and need from their post offices and how they can forge
a sustainable business;

e To address the issue of over provision of offices with low footfall
so that customer demand better matches the supply of offices and,
where appropriate, enable the subpostmaster to leave on
compensated terms;

e To provide certainty for customers on future access and greater
clarity and stability for staff and subpostmasters.

As most people recognise, this will require some reduction in network
size, particularly among the least used offices and those making the
biggest losses, but this will be carefully managed to ensure that
communities with the greatest social needs do not lose access to post
office services. The Government will set criteria for access to ensure
coverage at an appropriate level and will provide funding for Post Office
Ltd to enable this to be delivered. The Government's proposals for
delivering the national network are outlined in the next chapter.

Modernisation of the network will require significant effort on the part of
Post Office Ltd. It needs to focus on working to bring the Crown offices
back to profit, transforming them through refurbishment and investment
into the flagships of the Post Office brand. Post Office Ltd is working
closely with staff and Unions to develop a strategy to achieve this. The
proposals centre on a small number of closures and continued franchising
of directly operated branches by pursuing link-ups with well established,
respected retailers that share the Post Office’s commitment to excellent
customer service. The result will be a smaller profitable national chain of
Crown offices operating to modern retail standards, also setting standards
for customer service throughout the network and pioneering the use of
new technology such as self-service channels. The company's priority in
developing its strategy for the Crown office network is to work
constructively with staff on implementation. The transformation of the
Crown office network will be achieved through a carefully managed
programme of conversions and closures and through improved
productivity. In addition, significant reductions in administrative overheads
and staffing levels are planned across the business.

Post Office Ltd also needs to minimise its losses by focusing on
improving the products and services it offers and on adopting new and
more flexible business models. Rather than focusing on traditional
facilities, Post Office Ltd will explore Outreach (provision of services by
a core subpostmaster to outlying communities which do not or no longer
have a permanent post office as described at 4.7) and other innovative
ways to deliver the right services to people who need them.



The Post Office Network Page 30

4.7

4.8

With Government funding, Post Office Ltd has been successfully trialling
Outreach services in rural areas in all parts of the United Kingdom to test
the potential for subpostmasters who run larger offices also to offer
services in smaller communities. The trials include using mobile post offices,
delivering postal office services directly to people’s houses and hosting post
offices in other businesses such as pubs, community centres and village
halls. The introduction of Outreach services helps to keep costs down while
helping people gradually to adapt and to accept changes in how services
might be delivered in the future. The Outreach approach is designed to
provide delivery of ‘value for money’ rural post office services that can be
tailored to meet different circumstances and situations. Under the trials
Post Office Ltd has been running, a core post office serves a number of
Outreach sites using one or more of four Outreach options. These are:

e Hosted - a full service offered by the subpostmaster (or a fully
trained employee) of a nearby post office at a “host” site such as
a shop, village hall or church.

e Partner — a basic service with access to cash, bill payments,
stamps, weighing and leaving parcels being provided by another
retailer alongside their main business such as a petrol station or
pub overseen by the core subpostmaster who would provide the
site with the products required.

e Home service — a limited service offered via telephone or on-line
ordering, with the subpostmaster arranging delivery in person to
the customer’s home or to a local delivery point.

e Mobile — a full service is offered by a mobile post office visiting a
number of locations at set times on a regular basis.

The Post Office has many examples of imaginative ways of providing post
office services to small communities as recognised in their annual ‘Best
Post Office Awards’, which this year reflected the changing ways in which
people are willing to deliver and receive post office services. A small
branch in Cnwch Coch, near Aberystwyth, which is run from a working
farm, was named the most innovative branch in the UK. Whilst the
Rosebush post office in Carmarthenshire, run from a cowshed on a farm
making cheese, was runner-up. There are also examples of community run
village shops combined with a post office as in the co-operative venture at
Bicknoller in Somerset. Examples of initiatives introduced in the Outreach
pilot trials are set out below.

e |n Frittenden, Kent the community welcomed the return of access
to Post Office services lost after the closure of the local shop. The
Bell & Jorrocks pub volunteered to become the location for a new
automated Partner service with the Core branch being at Staplehurst
meaning that locals now have the chance to get cash and stamps,
as well as refreshments and a spot of lunch, all under one roof.



4.9

4.10

Page 31The Future Shape of the Network

e |In Fife the sub-post office at Leven also provides services through
village shops in the communities of Windygates and Collinsburgh,
demonstrating the opportunities for existing businesses to play
host to a post office for a part of the week, which not only
maintains services but also brings the benefit of added visitors to
the host business. And the scope for working with communities
to find solutions isn’t limited to using commercial businesses.

The village hall is used to host to a satellite post office for the
small community of East Stour in Dorset.

* The subpostmaster of the Llandeilo branch is showing how a
single Core branch can help maintain service to a number of
communities and provides a service using portable equipment
hosted at Carmel village hall as well as at the village shop in two
other nearby communities. The same subpostmaster also operates
a satellite branch in the isolated village of Bethlehem, which
famously receives a much-needed boost to custom every
Christmas time from those wanting to send greetings cards
bearing the distinctive postmark.

e The Post Office has also been successfully testing imaginative new
ways of bringing services to communities by using distinctive Post
Office vans. In Durham, the Mobile service operated by the Post
Office branch in Tow Law is a welcome visitor at nine communities
in the area. In Northern Ireland the idea of a post office on the
move has even been taken one step further where the Post Office
has linked-up with a mobile library service. And in Suffolk, the
subpostmaster of the Core branch at Aldeburgh is helping provide
post office services to the door for six small communities in the
surrounding area.

To improve their cost effectiveness, the hours for the Qutreach services
can be set at a level more appropriate to the level of business generated
in that community, ending the current situation where many
subpostmasters are open for long periods of time with little or no custom.
In many cases the range of services available is extended, through access
to the Core site’s product range, meaning many customers will have
access to the likes of motor vehicle licensing and passport check and
send services for the first time.

In addition to network restructuring, Post Office Ltd is developing a
transformation plan for the business. Their vision is of the Post Office

as a trusted advisor and helping hand for both consumers and small
businesses as they manage their households, their money and their
enterprises. Post Office Ltd will extend its services with new mails and
financial service products tailored to customers’ needs and with more
convenient access. The business is focusing products and services in four
key areas:



The Post Office Network Page 32

411

412

20

e Mails — Building on its traditional products and its position as the
retail arm of Royal Mail, the Post Office aims to be the place to go
for all mail needs, providing advice and expertise as well as a full
range of products. For example it is looking at how to provide
customers greater convenience for picking up packets and is
working with eBay and mail order houses to provide additional
high-convenience mails products.

* Financial Services — Post Office Ltd also aims to build on its
successful launch into financial services as the fastest growing
entrant in Car Insurance selling on average 1,000 policies a day,
£1.2 billion invested to date in the Instant Saver Account, expand
its range of banking, personal finance, travel (for which it is the
market leader in foreign exchange provision) and bill payment
products, introduce 4,000 new PayStation electronic terminals and
offer 4,000 free to use ATMs across the network.

e Telecoms — Post Office Ltd has built a significant business in the
telecoms area with both HomePhone and now the number two
player in the UK for mobile top-ups. The business is looking to
launch further products in this area such as a broadband offer.

e Government services — Post Offices will continue to provide a
broad range of Government-related services, simply and
conveniently and will seek to work in partnership with a range of
Government departments to look for opportunities to deliver
services on their behalf via post office channels.

In addition to continuing to build products and services for consumers,
Post Office Ltd also plans to extend its services and convenience for small
business customers. It has plans to transform the customer experience in
accessing the Post Office, and in addition providing more convenient
access through multiple channels such as Internet or telephone, making it
easier for customers to access Post Office products and services in a way
that best suits them as well as increasing opening hours where there is a
clear customer demand.

Within the mails area, Post Office Ltd is reviewing a range of initiatives to
improve service and convenience to customers. A key area of opportunity
will be providing customers with the ability to pick up parcels they have
ordered through mail order companies or via Internet services from post
office counters. The business is currently carrying out some trials in this
area and is working with other parts of the Royal Mail Group to develop
propositions for large clients including mail order companies, retailers, and
other businesses which have a need to get parcels to customers in the
most efficient and convenient way. Post Office Ltd and Royal Mail are
working closely together to provide end-to-end solutions for its major
customers in this area.



4.13

414

415

Page 33Fhe Future Shape of the Network

As well as the planned programme to refurbish Crown Offices outlined
below, Post Office Ltd is also developing new ways of working with and
supporting its subpostmasters and franchise partners, again with the
objective of meeting customer needs more consistently. These include up
to 4,000 free to use cash machines (ATMSs) across the network and
another 4,000 PayStation terminals will be rolled out across agencies and
franchise offices, enabling subpostmasters to provide a greater number of
services electronically and with more flexibility. Post Office Ltd expects
about 20% of its sales to come through direct channels by 2011, and will
be investing in its website and call centres to give customers the best
possible Post Office experience beyond the branch. Nevertheless for
those customers preferring to visit a post office, a national network of
offices will continue to provide national coverage in line with clearly
specified access criteria. Customers of the smallest offices which cannot
be retained will however have the choice of using direct channels or
visiting a nearby office.

Crown offices, in common with much of the rest of the network, have
long suffered from lack of investment. \Where Crown offices directly
managed by Post Office Ltd can be improved, this needs to be delivered
by investment in the premises, in new technology and in improved
customer offering but in some cases conversion to a franchise operation
may be a more appropriate way forward, Post Office Ltd will also invest in
improvements to the premises and the layout and operation of customer
services to bring standards up to those customers expect of a modern
retail business. Crown offices will act as flagships setting standards for
customer service across the network and pioneering the use of new
technology such as new automated self-service facilities.

In addition to Post Office Ltd's efforts to transform the business, the
Government remains committed to allowing people to access their
pension and benefit in cash at the post office if they choose to do so,
and there is a range of accounts which make that possible. The current
POca contract ends in March 2010. The Government has considered and
decided that it will continue with a new account after 2010. This new
account will include similar features to the POca. It will be available
nationally and customers will be eligible for the account on the same basis
as they are now. EU procurement rules leave us with no option but to
tender competitively for this product, and we must ensure that the best
value for money for the taxpayer is achieved, but Post Office Ltd is well
placed to put in a strong bid given the size of the network and the access
criteria that we are now introducing. In addition, cash will be available at
the post office through some 4,000 free to use ATMs which are being
introduced across the network as well as a range of interest accounts
which will be attractive to the general public as well as those POca users
who choose to build up balances on the Card Account.

21



Page 34

Section b:

A Restructured
National Network

Re

structuring of the network will be undertaken within the framework of

access criteria which safeguard rural and deprived urban coverage and will

ensure that a national network is maintained. Outreach will provide

services in many rural areas.

5.1

The Government recognises the important social and economic role post
offices play, particularly in rural and deprived urban communities, and also
accepts that where such post offices role can never be commercially viable
there will a need for an ongoing social network payment of up to the current
level of £150 million a year. The restructuring of the network will reflect this.

5.2 To enable Post Office Ltd to deliver a stable national network, Government

N

22

plans to introduce a set of key criteria defining the minimum access
requirements to post office services across the United Kingdom. These
criteria will set a standard for national coverage and will be supplemented
by additional criteria to safeguard rural and deprived urban coverage.

We therefore propose to task Post Office Ltd with restructuring the
network to establishing one that meets the following access requirements
to an outlet*

e Nationally, 99% within 3 miles and 90% of the population to be within
Tmile;

e |n deprived urban areas®, 99% of the population to be within 1 mile;
e |n urban areas, 95% of the population to be within 1 mile;
e |n rural areas, 95% of the total rural population within 3 miles.

e |nremote areas, 95% of the population in postcode districts® within
6 miles.

an "“outlet” can be a fixed branch or a location at which outreach services are available
deprived urban communities are those in the 10% most deprived super output areas as
identified by the Indices of Multiple Deprivation

a postcode district is the first part of the postcode e.g. SL9. There are 2,795 nationwide of
which 38 do not currently meet this criterion. These 38 will continue to be exempt but we will
not allow any further postcode districts to be exempt.



53

54

55

5.6

5.7

Page 35A Restructured National Network

The Government recognises that across the country as a whole there
cannot be a ‘one size fits all’ approach to access criteria and that Post
Office Ltd will need to take in to account local conditions on a common
sense basis to reflect obstacles such as rivers, mountains, valleys,
motorways and sea crossings to islands to avoid undue hardship and
ensure that the principles behind the access criteria are adhered to.

The current policy of preventing the avoidable closure of post offices in
rural areas will be replaced by a new policy of maintaining the coverage
levels set out above. After the restructuring programme, there will
continue to be changes to the network as a result of natural exits (for
example when the subpostmaster retires or moves on). Any closures
resulting from natural exits would be subject to the access criteria above
and, depending on local circumstances, services would need to be
maintained or replaced with alternative service delivery methods.

In rationalising the network, we would require Post Office Ltd to ensure
that no one part of the network or no particular group of people is
significantly more adversely affected than any other. We expect that
rationalisation will principally affect a combination of least used branches
and non-commercial branches in areas of over-provision where people can
find alternative branches nearby.

We wiill provide support to Post Office Ltd to compensate subpostmasters
who are obliged to leave the network under the restructuring programme
on a similar basis to the Urban Reinvention programme (under which
compensation of 28 months remuneration was paid. The average payment
to urban subpostmasters was £60,000 per office). It is clear that
significant numbers of subpostmasters want to leave the network under

a structured programme that compensates them for not being in a position
to sell on their business.

We wiill be asking Post Office Ltd to develop local plans that fit within this
framework. Whilst decisions on specific closures and their locations will
be a matter for the company, we will limit Post Office Ltd to a maximum
of 2,500 compensated closures nationally. They will also need to ensure
that network restructuring is completed within the designated funding
package as well as meeting the required access criteria.

In developing Post Office Ltd's proposals, branches that are specifically
required to meet either the Universal Service Obligation for access to
postal services or the Government's new criteria for national and remote
area coverage will require special arrangements. Depending on
circumstances, these will either be excluded from closure proposals or
their closure will be mitigated through the introduction of Outreach
delivery methods.

23



The Post Office Network Page 36

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.1

24

We will encourage Post Office Ltd to build on the success of the
Outreach service delivery model to help maintain services to more remote
communities. A significant number (about 500) of new Outreach will be
put in place helping to mitigate the consequences of the managed rural
closure programme following consultation with subpostmasters and local
communities. Over time, Post Office Ltd, where it makes commercial
sense and takes due account of local sensitivities, could employ this new
business model extensively in future as branches closing through natural
attrition are replaced in accordance with the new national coverage
criteria. Together with existing Outreach delivery points and additional
ones mitigating some of the closures which will arise through natural
exits. Such delivery points will, by 2010-11, play an increasing role in
delivering continued services to remote communities where conventional
offices are not economic.

Drawing on experience of the Urban Reinvention Programme, we would
expect that Post Office Ltd's approach to closures and other service
restructuring measures will be to consult on area proposals based on
groupings of adjacent Parliamentary constituencies and will be planned
and consulted on the basis of putting forward proposals for all closures
and other related changes in that area at the same time to better capture
and reflect the needs of customers. Implementation will be programmed
in the most efficient manner. Area proposals will be developed within the
framework of the relevant access criteria and with the participation of
subpostmasters and Postwatch. Members of Parliament and of the
devolved administrations will be informed of the proposals before being
put to a six week public consultation amongst customers and other
organisations.

Because Post Office Ltd will be developing its closure proposals on a
strategic basis in compliance with the access criteria, it will be a
compulsory scheme. But, wherever possible, we expect them to match
closures with offices where the subpostmaster has indicated his or her
willingness to retire from, or leave, the business, thereby minimising the
numbers of closures where subpostmasters have not indicated a wish to
close their business on the compensated terms basis of the restructuring
programme.

Against this background, Post Office Ltd will not be consulting on the
principles of change as these will have been established by Government
policy and covered as part of this national policy consultation. The role of
Postwatch at this stage will be to check that the right people are
consulted, their views properly gathered and subsequent decisions
effectively communicated.



Page 37

Section 6:

Conclusions

6.1

6.2

The Government is committed to a national network of post offices.

We believe that the range of measures in our proposed forward strategy,
set out in this consultation document, will place the restructured network
which emerges on a stable footing for the foreseeable future. We also
believe that the proposed measures strike a balance between the cost to
taxpayers in financing the social role of post offices and the needs of the
most vulnerable groups of customers, particularly in rural and deprived
urban areas. We have worked closely with Post Office Ltd over the past
months and our proposals reflect the company’s investment case to
Government. We will continue our discussions with the company in the
coming months and will look to reach final decisions after we have
considered responses to this consultation.

The Government's proposed further investment will provide Post Office
Ltd with an opportunity to modernise and restructure the network and put
it on a stable and more sustainable footing by 2011. Beyond that point,

it is important that the shape and coverage of the network continues to
reflect and adapt to local needs. It is the people “on the ground” who
best understand the value of a post office to the local community and
Local Government is also well placed to understand local concerns and
needs. Their involvement may enable more regular appraisals of the level
of post office coverage that is required to meet local needs. The
Government wants in the longer term to devolve greater responsibility
for local decisions to a local level and to provide greater flexibility for local
funding decisions. Government therefore intends to investigate what role
both Local Authorities in England and the Devolved Administrations in
Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland might play in influencing how the
postal services are best delivered in the future.

25



The Post Office Network Page 38

6.3 This consultation paper sets out the Government'’s proposals for

26

restructuring the post office network to put it on a stable footing for the
longer term. We welcome comments raised on the issues raised in this

document and specifically welcome responses to the questions listed
below.



Page 39

Summary of
Questions

In this consultation the Government invites responses to the following
questions:

1.

Do you think the Government’s forward strategy for the post office
network addresses all the key issues and challenges the network faces?

Are there other significant factors affecting the future of the post office
network which appear to have been overlooked in the Government’s
proposed approach?

Do you have comments on the national access criteria proposed?

Do you have comments on the access criteria proposed for deprived
urban and rural areas?

Do you have any suggestions as to how services might be better
delivered through the post office network?

Do you have any comments on Outreach arrangements as a means of
maintaining service to small and remote communities?

Do you have comments on the practicality of community ownership of
parts of the post office network, which might involve the transfer of
assets to community organisations and/or the establishment of local
mutual or co-operative organisations to own and run local services?

27



Page 40

Annex A

Consultation Code
of Practice

1. Consult widely throughout the process, allowing a minimum of 12 weeks for
written consultation at least once during the development of the policy.

2. Be clear about what your proposals are, who may be affected, what
questions are being asked and the timescale for responses.

3. Ensure that your consultation is clear, concise and widely accessible.

4. Give feedback regarding the responses received and how the consultation
process influenced the policy.

5. Monitor your department’s effectiveness at consultation, including through
the use of a designated consultation co-ordinator.

6. Ensure your consultation follows better regulation best practice, including
carrying out a Regulatory Impact Assessment if appropriate.

The complete code is available on the Cabinet Office’s web site, address
http://www.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/regulation/consultation/index.asp

28



Page 41

Annex B

The Post Office
Network

Consultation Response Form
The closing date for this consultation is 8 March 2007

You may find it helpful to set out your responses to the consultation using this
response form.

Name:

Organisation’s name and
remit (if applicable):

Address:

Email:

Return completed forms (preferably by e-mail) to:

Postal Office Network Consultation
Department of Trade and Industry
Response Centre

1 Victoria Street

London

SW1H OET

Fax: 00 44 (0) 20 7215 5329
E-mail: dti.enquiries@dti.gsi.gov.uk

29



The Post Office Network Page 42

Please cross one box from the following list of options that best describes you.
Individual

Individual — Subpostmaster

Small to Medium Enterprise

Trade Union

Interest Group

Regional Organisation

Devolved Administration

Local Government

Central Government

oo dognn

Other (please specify)

Please feel free to answer as many or as few questions as you wish. It is
helpful if you can explain your views as fully as possible in the comments
boxes, especially where you disagree with the proposals set out in the
consultation paper.

Question 1.

Do you think the Government's forward strategy for the post office network
addresses all the key issues and challenges the network faces?

Yes |:| No |:| No view |:|

30



Page 43 The Post Office Network

Question 2.

Are there other significant factors affecting the future of the post office network
which appear to have been overlooked in the Government’s proposed approach?

Yes |:| No |:| No view |:|

Question 3.

Do you have comments on the national access criteria proposed?

Yes |:| No |:| No view |:|

Question 4.

Do you have comments on the access criteria proposed for deprived urban and
rural areas?

Yes |:| No |:| No view |:|
31




The Post Office Network Page 44
Question b.

Do you have any suggestions as to how services might be better delivered
through the post office network?

Yes |:| No |:| No view |:|

Question 6.

Do you have any comments on Outreach arrangements as a means of
maintaining service to small and remote communities?

Yes |:| No |:| No view |:|

Question 7.

Do you have comments on the practicality of community ownership of parts
of the post office network, which might involve the transfer of assets to
community organisations and/or the establishment of local mutual or
co-operative organisations to own and run local services?

Yes |:| No |:| No view |:|

Thank you for taking the time to let us have your views.

We do not intend to acknowledge receipt of individual responses unless you tick
the box below.

[]



Page 45

Annex C

List of Organisations
Consulted

Action for Communities in Rural England
Age Concern — England

Association of British Credit Unions
British Chambers of Commerce

Business in the Community

Centre for Environment and Rural Affairs
Commission for Rural Communities
Co-operatives UK Limited

Disability Rights Commission

Federation of Small Businesses

Forum of Private Business

Help The Aged — England

Joseph Rowntree Foundation

Local Government Association

Mencap

National Association of Citizens Advice Bureaux
National Association of Local Councils
National Council for Voluntary Organisations
National Federation of WWomen's Institutes
Plunkett Foundation

Royal National Institute of the Blind,

Rural Shops Alliance

Social Enterprise Coalition
Townswomen's Guild

Village Retail Services Association



The Post Office Network Page 46

Age Concern — Scotland

Association of Scottish Community Councils
Communities Scotland

Convention Of Scottish Local Authorities
Help The Aged — Scotland

Money Advice Scotland

Scottish Consumer Council

Scottish Council for Voluntary Organisations
Scottish Enterprise

The Scottish Parliament

Age Concern — Wales

Campaign for the Protection of Rural Wales
Countryside Council for Wales

Help The Aged — Wales

National Pensioners Convention Wales
One Voice Wales

Wales Pensioners

Wales Rural Forum

Welsh Assembly Government

Welsh Consumer Council

Welsh Council for Voluntary Action

Welsh Local Government Association

Age Concern — Northern Ireland

Community Relations Council

Equality Commission

General Consumer Council For Northern Ireland

Help The Aged — Northern Ireland

Northern Ireland Assembly

Northern Ireland Chamber of Commerce and Industry
Northern Ireland Local Government Association
Northern Ireland Public Service Alliance

Northern Ireland Social Care Council

Rural Community Network

Rural Development Council

The Northern Ireland Committee, Irish Congress of Trade Unions

National Federation of Sub-Postmasters
Postcomm

Postwatch

34



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



(AT

Printed in the UK on recycled paper containing a minimum of 75% post consumer waste.
First published December 2006. Department of Trade and Industry. www.dti.gov.uk
© Crown Copyright. This publication is Crown Copyright but may be reproduced without formal permission or charge
for personal or non-commercial use subject to the source being acknowledged.

DTI/Pub 8446/50k/12/06/NP. URN 06/2185



Post Office Ltd

Network Change
Programme

rea Plan Proposa
London



Page 52



Page 53

Contents

ik wWwN =

Introduction

Proposed Local Area Plan

The Role of Postwatch

List of Post Office® branches proposed for closure

List of Post Office® branches proposed to remain in the Network

Frequently Asked Questions Leaflet
Map of the Local Area Plan

Branch Access Reports - information on proposed closing branches
and details of alternative branches in the Area



Page 54



Page 55

1. Introduction

The Government has recognised that fewer people are using Post Office® branches, partly
because traditional services, including benefit payments and other services are now available in
other ways, such as online or directlg through banks. It has concluded that the overall size and
shape of the network of Post Office” branches ("the Network”) needs to change.

In May 2007, following a national public consultation, the Government announced a range of
proposed measures to modernise and reshape the Network and put it on a more stable footing
for the future. A copy of the Government's response to the national public consultation (‘the
Response Document”) can be obtained at www.dti.gov.uk/consultations/page36024.html.

Post Office Ltd has now put in place a Network Change Programme (“the Programme’) to
implement the measures proposed by the Government. The Programme will involve the
compulsory compensated closure of up to 2,500 Post Office® branches (out of a current Network
of 14,300 branches), with the introduction of about 500 service points known as “Outreaches’ to
mitigate the impact of the proposed closures. Compensation will be paid to those
subpostmasters whose branches are compulsorily closed under the Programme.

To support the necessary changes to the Network and put it on a more stable footing and to
support the reshaped Network of the future, the Government has proposed an investment of up
to £1.7bn as a funding package.

The majority of Post Office® branches - more than 80% - will not change as a result of the
Programme. Post Office Ltd is seeking to implement those changes that do take place as
efficiently and sensitively as possible.

One of the key ways in which Post Office Ltd will make sure that people continue to have the best
possible access to Post Office® services is by applying the minimum access criteria prescribed by
the Government in the Response Document:

Nationally:

) 99% of the UK population to be within 3 miles and 90% of the population to be within 1
mile of their nearest Post Office® branch.

L 99% of the total population in deprived urban' areas across the UK to be within 1 mile of
their nearest Post Office® branch.

] 95% of the total urban’ population across the UK to be within 1 mile of their nearest Post
Office® branch.

. 95% of the total rural® population across the UK to be within 3 miles of their nearest Post
Office® branch.

! Deprived urban ~ The most disadvantaged urban parts of the UK based on the Indices of Multiple
Deprivation (top 15% Super Output Areas in England, 15% of Data Zones in Scotland and 30% of Super
Output Areas in Wales and Northern Ireland).

2 Urban — A community with 10,000 or more inhabitants in a continuous built up area.

3 Rural - A community not covered by the definition of Urban above.



Page 56

In addition, for each individual postcode district:

L 95% of the population of the postcode district to be within 6 miles of their nearest Post
Office® branch.

Changes to the Network can only take place within the prescribed access criteria.

In order to deliver the changes set out in the Response Document, Post Office Ltd has divided the
UK'into 47 areas ("Areas’). For each of these Areas Post Office Ltd will develop a local area plan
proposal ("Area Plan Proposal’) which will set out the changes that it proposes to make within it.
The Area Plan Proposal for London has been developed and in this booklet you will find
information on the changes proposed for London. Full details of the Area Plan Proposal for
London are available on our website www.postoffice.co.uk/networkchange or by contacting us at
the address given below.

When developing the Area Plan Proposal for London, Post Office Ltd analysed a number of
factors. These included the proximity of the Post Office® branches proposed for closure to other
nearby branches, the number of customers currently using a particular Post Office® branch, the
size and ability of nearby branches to absorb extra customers, and the commercial implications of
any decision for Post Office Ltd.

Post Office Ltd has also taken into account obstacles such as rivers, mountains and valleys,
motorways and sea crossings to islands in order to avoid undue hardship to customers. In
addition, the availability of public transport, alternative access to key Post Office® services (such as
cash withdrawals, bill payments, mail services), local demographics and the impact on local
economies have all been considered. Post Office Ltd has sought information from a number of
external organisations and people, including subpostmasters, local authorities and regional
development agencies to assist with this process.

Postwatch, the independent consumer watchdog for postal services, has worked with us in
assessing the options for change during the period leading up to the publication of the Area Plan
Proposal. Post Office Ltd has also engaged with other stakeholders, including relevant MPs.

Local Public Consultation

Each Area Plan Proposal is subject to local public consultation to ensure that the views of local
people are taken into account before any final decisions are made by Post Office Ltd.

The local public consultation on the Area Plan Proposal for London will commence on 19 February
2008. The local public consultation will last for a period of six weeks and the closing date for
feedback is 2 April 2008. Exceptionally in this instance we have extended public consultation by 2
working days to allow for the holiday period over Easter. Please send your views and comments in
writing regarding access to future Post Office® services in this Area to the address detailed below
(payment of postage is not required to a Freepost address). Please note that your comments will
not be kept confidential unless you expressly ask us to do so by clearly marking them ‘In
Confidence’.

Anita Turner
Network Development Manager
C/o National Consultation Team
FREEPOST CONSULTATION TEAM

Email: consultation@postoffice.co.uk
Customer Helpline: 08457 22 33 44



Page 57

2. The Area Plan Proposal for London

Post Office Ltd is acutely aware of the concerns that changes, including closures, affecting Post
Office® branches in London will cause. In fulfilling the Government’s requirement to reduce the
overall size of the Post Office® network (“the Network”) — and to do so in a way which creates
similar results across the UK as a whole, and ensures that no group of inhabitants at an area level
is overall significantly more adversely affected than any other — we are proposing to retain a total
of 681 Post Office® branches and to close 169 existing branches.

If these proposed changes take place, Post Office Ltd will still remain the largest retailer by
Network size in London, and will still have more branches open than the number of branches of
major banks and building societies combined. In total 7 million London residents will either see
no change to the branch that they currently use or will remain within one mile of an alternative
outlet.

At present London’s 7.2 million residents are served by a total of 852 branches. Usage of Post
Office® branches is falling, in line with national trends, as more customers access services at other
places, make more use of the internet and have their Government benefits, including pensions,
paid directly into bank accounts.

This Area Plan Proposal supports achievement of the national accessibility criteria set by the
Government, forms part of an overall reduction in the number of branches by up to 2,500 across
the UK and does not disproportionately affect the inhabitants of the area relative to other parts
of the UK.

In addition to meeting these criteria, when preparing this Area Plan Proposal Post Office Ltd has
considered factors relating to geography, the availability of local transport and alternative access
to key Post Office® services, local demographics and the impact on local economies. All branches
where changes are proposed have been visited by members of Post Office Ltd's staff to make sure
that all customer needs at a local level are considered when developing the Area Plan Proposal.

London communities are diverse in nature and over 300 languages are spoken within the city,
representing a wide range of peoples, cultures and religions. Around a fifth of London’s 4.6 million
jobs are filled by people who live outside the Capital, therefore increasing the number of Post
Office® customers in London.

London’s diverse communities combine areas of notable affluence alongside pockets of
deprivation and in both cases customers are able to draw from a variety of Post Office® services.
London serves as the largest aviation hub in the world with major international airports and a
large port serving the area bringing in over 13 million visitors to the capital each year for business
or holiday. Post Office Ltd recognises the importance of this mix of business and tourism and its
impact on access to Post Office® services.

Some 95.8% of London's population live in urban communities and 4.2% in “rural” communities as
defined by the Government classification. The needs of those living in communities defined as
deprived have been carefully considered in this Area Plan Proposal, reflecting the specific national
criteria set by the Government to give greater safeguards on the accessibility of branches in these
communities. Some 17.9% of London'’s total population live in deprived communities. This
proposal of future Network provision in London provides for 138 branches being located in urban
deprived communities.



Page 58

In order to meet the Government's access criteria and avoid undue hardship, Post Office Ltd is
proposing a future Network comprising 675 branches in urban areas and 6 branches in “rural’
areas such as villages around Heathrow.

Post Office Ltd has engaged with various stakeholders when preparing this Area Plan Proposal.
We have consulted with the independent consumer watchdog on postal services, Postwatch, and
have asked all local authorities within the London area to provide information and views relevant
to the factors which we are able to consider. Our aim throughout has been to minimise the
impact, as far as possible, on our customers and to produce the most effective overall proposal for
the future.

In our communications with stakeholders we have been made aware of various regeneration,
development and transport plans affecting areas within the overall plan. Feedback was received
from Local Authorities including the London Borough of Bexley, the London Borough of Bromley,
the London Borough of Camden, the London Borough of Enfield, the London Borough of
Greenwich, the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames, the London Borough of Lambeth, the
City of London, the London Borough of Merton, the London Borough of Richmond upon Thames
and the London Borough of Waltham Forest.

The input that we have received regarding public transport provision does not suggest any
proposed reduction in current provision which could leave branches significantly less accessible for
particular communities or make it more difficult for customers to access alternative branches
than at present.

We believe that the proposed area plan takes account of the information that has been made
available. Provision of Post Office® services within the Area Plan will be kept under review should
demand increase beyond anticipated levels in the future.

In finalising the Area Plan Proposal, all branches were carefully considered against the
Government's minimum access criteria which Post Office Ltd must meet and with regard to other
factors that we must consider. In total 33% of the initial Area Plan Proposal was changed as all the
above mentioned factors were reviewed and as information from stakeholders was considered
and assessed.

Future service provision:

On 8th January 2008 Post Office Ltd announced the start of public consultation for proposals to
close Essex Road and Ludgate Circus Crown Post Office® branches. This consultation is being run
alongside the Network Change Programme. The Network Change Programme is a separate part
of the strategy for the future of Post Office® branches and does not apply to Crown Post Office®
branches.

Post Office Ltd is considering the future of the Crown Post Office® branches alongside the
Network Change Programme proposals to ensure that service provision for customers in the areas
is looked at as a whole. So the consultation periods will end on the same date and all responses
made will then be considered before final decisions are made. At present there are 106 Crown
Post Office® branches serving communities in London and a further15 flagship branches located
in WHSmith with one remaining in consultation. We expect to franchise the following Crown Post
Office® branches: Tottenham Post Office®, East Acton Post Office®, Borough Post Office® and
Maida Hill Post Office®.



Page 59

The Area Plan Proposal envisages a Post Office® Network of 681 Post Office® branches in
London, which ensures that Post Office Ltd would comply with the minimum access criteria set by
the Government. For 89.4% of customers this would mean no change to the Post Office® branch
that they currently use.

The Network now proposed for London continues to offer better access to services than that of
any similar organisation, while accepting the Government’s decision to reduce overall branch
numbers. Subject to the Government's overriding criteria, we have considered geographuy,
transport provision, demographics and local economic impact where appropriate

Post Office Ltd understands the importance of its role in both urban and rural communities and is
keen to continue to provide access to services for as many customers in as many of these
communities as possible. We have also considered the relative convenience of alternative
branches for those customers whose closest branch is proposed for closure. Some 10.6% of
customers currently use a branch that is proposed for closure. However these customers would
still have access to Post Office® services within one mile as measured by road distance (5.9%
being within half a mile of their nearest alternative). In total 99.9% of the population will either
see no change, or will be within one mile of an alternative branch.

Next steps...

During the local public consultation, which will commence on 19" February 2008 and end on 2"
April 2008 we will seek views on the proposed future service provision in London as outlined in this
Area Plan Proposal.

Subject to the conclusion of the local public consultation period and after consideration of
feedback received, no changes would be implemented before June 2008.

Post Office Ltd is at a crucial point. Customer numbers are falling, customer habits are changing
and many of our traditional services are available elsewhere. It is essential that the changes,
which include a reduction in the number of branches, are made if the Network is to have a
sustainable future. We therefore welcome your views and comments regarding access to future
Post Office® services in this area. In particular we ask for your views on accessibility to the
nearest Post Office® branch.



Page 60

10



The consumer watchdog

Postwatch is the independent watchdog for postal services, created by the Postal Services Act
2000. Postwatch is working with Post Office Ltd and local communities throughout the
programme to help secure the best possible outcome for customers.

What Postwatch will do

Postwatch operates through nine regional and national committees across the UK. Postwatch’s
role during the programme — prescribed by government - is to scrutinise Post Office Ltd's
proposals and give feedback, ensure local consultations are meaningful, and that Post Office Ltd’s
decisions are sensible and in line with government criteria.

Each Postwatch regional office investigates Post Office Ltd's closure proposals. Postwatch receives
area plans in advance of public consultation, allowing the time to examine proposals, and Post
Office Ltd the chance to refine their proposals before going to public consultation.

Once public consultation is underway, Postwatch works to raise awareness of local consultations,
and encourage participation. Postwatch will also work to ensure the minimum access criteria set
out by the government are maintained.

Where Postwatch thinks proposals are unsatisfactory, they will work with local communities and
Post Office Ltd to address these problems. There is an agreed review mechanism between
Postwatch and Post Office Ltd for such instances, It is important to note that Postwatch does not
have a power of veto on Post Office Ltd's decisions. '

Further information
Postwatch and Post Office Ltd have agreed a Memorandum of Understanding, which sets out in

detail the role Postwatch will play in the Programme. This is available on the Postwatch website at
www.postwatch.co.uk.

11



Page 62

London area - Post Office branches proposed for Closure

[ Branch Nama ] Address | TeuniCity | Fostengn | Constituency | Lecal Authority l
87 Broad Lane, London Borough
Fage Green South Totterham Londan MISADW  |Tottenharn of Harringay
Vst Groon 434 West Grean Foad, angon Borough
Road (434; South Tetterham Lordaon MiS3FT  |Tottenhars of Harinoey
100 Alexandra
Alexandra Fark Poad, Hornsey ard London Burough
Park Road Muswell Hill Lardarn NIUZAE  |Wood Green of Hardingeay
Hornsey and Lendon Barough
Forms Park Road  |Firsbuny Park Lordon M4 4ED Woud Green of Hardngey
Hornsey and London Burcugh
Salisbury Road Wood Grean Lordan HZZEML  |Wood Green of Harringey
8% Weston Park, Horosey and London Barough
Waston Park Homsey Lewrschan NE PR Wioad Greery of Harringey J




Page 63

Branch Access Report

Branch Proposed for Closure 15t Altémative Branch 2nd Alternative Branch ]
Ferme Park Road Stroud Green Road Hornsey Road 507
Finsbury Park 97 Stroud Green Road 507 Hornsey Road
London London London
N4 4ED N4 3PX N193QL
SPS0O SPSQ SPSO

Yes

 LunchStart | LinchFineh | Close

09:00 1730 09:00 17:30 1730
09.00 17:30 89:00 1730 1730
09:00 17:30 09:.00 17:30 17:30
08.00 1730 09:00 1730 17:30
09:00 17.30 09:00 1730 1730
0800 1300 09:.00 1300 A 1230
Cosed Cosed Closed
465 465 46
2 3 2
750-999 2000 - 2499 100G- 1499

None

Euro/Doflar On Demand Currency,

None

Hornsey and Wood Green

Islington North

Islington North

Population - 88106; Population Aged 0-15 - 18%;
Population Aged 16-Retired - 71%; Population Retired - 9%;
Households with T or more car or van - 48%

Population - 91506; Population Aged 015 - 18%;
Population Aged 16-Retired - 71%; Population Retired - 9%;
Households with 1 or more car of van - 46%

Population - 87083; Population Aged 0-15 - 17%;
Population Aged 16-Retired - 71%; Population Retired -
10%; Households with 1 of more caf of van - 48%

Newsagent and Stationers

Newsagent and Stationers

Newsagent and Stationers

The branch has leve! access,

The branch has level access

There is a step at the entrance to the branch

There are several retailers in the area and are alf
independent traders,

There are several retailers in the area and are alt
independent traders,

There ate several retailers in the area and are all
independent traders,

There s an ATM inside the branch,

There are metered parking facilities available outside the
branch,

The nearest bus stop is 380 yards away.

Freestanding post box outside the branch.

Crouch End

There is an ATM located at the nearby supermarket.

Thereis an ATM inside the branch

The route between the two branches is along mainiy level
terrain,

The route between the two branches is along varied
terrain

050

080

There are meteted parking facilities available within 50
yards of the branch,

There are metered parking facilities available within 100
yards of the branch,

Transport for London

There are numerous bus services in the area, but no direct
route between the branches

Take the Route Bus W3 towards Northumberland Park or

Route Bus W3 towards Wood Green Station. NiA
Buses every: 6 - 7 minutes N/A
The nearest bus stop is 230 yards awal, NiA
Journey time: 11 minutes N/A
All Tranisport for London buses are low-floor vehicles,

Floor level buses enable ali custorners, including

wheelchair users, people with buggies, people with Nia
assistance dogs and people with other mobility

impairments to get on and off easify,

Children and young people under the age of 18 in fuil-time
education and those over 60 and registered disabled

holding Freedom Passes are entitled to free travel on N/A
tondon public transport. There are further concessions for
residents on Income Support.

None None

Freestanding post box outside the branch

Finsbury Park

Freestanding post box outside the branch.

Hornsey

28-29 Topsfield Parade 280 Seven Sisters Road 24 High Street
Homsey

London London London

Greater London Greater London

N88Q8 N4 ZAB N8 7PB




Page 64

Branch Access Report

Branch Proposed for Closure 1st Alternative Branch 2nd Alternative Branch
Weston Park Crouch End Hornsey
89 Weston Park 28-29 Topstield Parade 24 High Street
Hotrsey Hornsey
London London London

Greater London

Greater London

NE 9PR

N8 80B

Closed Closed Closed
4025 455 46
1 7 3
750-998 3500 - 3599 1500- 1999

On Line Lottery.

Euro On Demand Currency, passport checking and DVLA.

E£uro On Demand Currency,

Hornsey and Wood Green,

Hornsey and Wood Green

Hornisey and Wood Green

Population - 72655; Population Aged 0-15 - 17%; Population
Aged 16-Retired - 71%; Population Retired - 10%; Households
with 1 or more car or van- 53%

Population - 67682; Population Aged 0-15 - 18%; Population
Aged 16-Retired - 71%; Population Retired - 10%; Households
with 1 or more car of van - 56%

Population - 60872; Population Aged 0-15 - 18%; Population
Aged 16-Retired - 70%; Population Retired - 11%; Households
with 1 of more car of van - 57%

Newsagent and stationers

Crown Office

None

There are steps at the entrance to this branch.

This branch has fevet access. Internally, it is accessible by
wheelchairs,

There is a step at the entrance to this branch,

There are several retailers in the area.

This is a multi shopping area.

There are several retailers in the area,

None

This branch has an external ATM

None

Faitly Level

Varied terrain

04

08

There is parking directly outside the branch.

There is meter parking directly outside the branch,

There is free parking for upto 1 hour directiy outside the
branch between 10 am and 4 pm.

Transport for Landon

Transport for London

Take the Route Bus 41 towards Tottenham Hale,

Route Bus W3 towards Finsbury Park

Every Sminutes

Every 6 - 7 minutes,

Bus stop is located 300 yards from the branch,

Bus stop is located 250 yards from the branch.

Bus stop is located 300 yards from the branch,

7 minutes.

10 minutes

All Transport for London buses are low-floor vehides. Floor
level buses enable all customers, including wheelchair users,
people with buggies, people with assistance dogs and peoplel
with other mobility impairments to get on and off easily,

All Transport for London buses are fow-floor vehidles. Floar
fevel buses enable all customers, including wheelchair users,
people with buggies, people with assistance dogs and peaplel
with other mobility impairments to get on and off easily.

Children and young people under the age of 18 in full-time
education and those over 60 and registered disabled holding|
Freedom Passes are entitled to free travel on London public
tranisport. There are further concessions for residents on
Income Support.

Children and young people under the age of 18 in full-time
education and those over 60 and registered disabled holding|
Freedom Passes are entitled to free travel on London public
transport. There are further concessiens for residents on
Income Support,

None

None

Freestanding post box outside branch.

Turnpike Lane

Walt mounted post box outside branch,

Stroud Green Road

Freestanding post box outside branch.

Hornsey Road 507

105 Turnpike Lane |97 Stroud Green Road 507 Hornsey Road
London London London
N8 ODY N4 3PX N193QL




Page 65

Branch Access Report

Branch Proposed for Closure st Alternative Branch 2nd Alternative Branch
Alexandra Park Road Alexandra Parade Muswelf Hilt
100 Alexandra Park Road 81 Colney Hatch Lane 420 Muswell Hill Broadway

Muswell Hill Muswell Hill

Loridor London London

N102AE NIOILR N101DQ
SPSO Crown

Yes

09:00
17:30 09:00
17:30 09:00
17:30 09:00
17.30 09:00
1230 05:00

Closed Closed
45 46
2 &
1000 - 1499 1000 - 1499 2500 - 2999

Or Line Lottery,

Euros On Demand Qurrency

DVLA & On Demand Currency,

Homsey and Wood Green

Finchiey and Golders Green

Hornsey and Wood Green

Fopulation - 45840; Population Aged 0-15 - 19%; Population
Aged 16-Retired - 67%; Population Retired - 12%; Households
with 1 or mote car or van - 66%

Population - 41058; Population Aged 0-15 - 19%; Population
Aged 16-Retired - 67%; Population Retired - 12%; Households!
with 1 of more car or van - 69%

Population - 44808; Population Aged 0-15 - 19%; Population
Aged 16-Retired - 67%; Population Retired - 12%; Households
with 1 or more car of van - 68%

Newsagents and stationers.

Newsagents and stationers,

Crown Office - with mini Post Shop.

The branch has a step at the entrance.

The branch has a step at the entrance.

The branch has level access,

Pharmacy, newsagent, , estate agent, public house.

There are several retailers in the area icluding a supermarket
opposite the branch,

The branch is in a multi-shopping area,

None

There is an ATM outside the branch

There are several ATM's within 110 yards of the branch

The terrain between the branches is hilly

The terrain between the branches is hilly,

055

063

There are parking facilities outside the branch

There is meter parking facilities 50 yards from the branch

There are parking facilities cutside the branch, _

Transport for London

Transport for London

102,289

102,299

Buses every 6 - 8 mins

Buses every 5-8 mins

150 yards

150 yards

10-12 minutes,

12-15 minutes.

All Transport for London huses are low-floor vehides. Floor
level buses enable all custorners, induding wheelchair users,
people with buggies, people with assistance dogs and peopley
with other mobifity impairments to get on and off easily

All Transport for London buses are low-fleor vehides, Floor
level buses enable all customers, including wheelchair users,
peopie with buggies, people with assistance dogs and people]
with other mobility impairments to get on and off easily

Chitdren and young people under the age of 18 in full-time
education and those over 60 and registered disabled holding
Freedom Passes are entitled to free travel on London public
transport. There are further concessions for residents on
Incorme Support.

Children and young people under the age of 18 in full-time
education and those over 60 and registered disabled holding;
Freedom Passes are entitled to free travel on London public
transport. There are further concessions for residents on
Income Support.

None

Nene

outside the branch,

Brownlow Road

There is a post box outside the branch,

Wood Green

all of the branch,

East Finchley

New Southgate 181 High Road 11-13 Viceroy Parade
Wood Green High Road
London London London
Greater London
N112DN N226DZ N2 8AF




Page 66

Bran

ch Access Report

Branch Proposed For Closure 15t Alternative Branch 20d Alternative Branch
Page Green West Green Road Seven Sisters Road

87 Broad Lane 108 West Green Road 614 Seven Sisters Road

South Tottenham South Tottenham South Tottenham

London London London

Greater London Greater London Greater London

N154DW N155AA N156HT

SPSO 5PS0
Yes Yes
. Open | GincnSeit [thnchFinsn| Cose | Open | GunchStart | LunonFinen
09:00 17:30 0900 17:30
09:00 17:30 09:00 17:30
09:00 17:30 09:00 17:30
0%:00 17:30 0900 17:30
09:00 17:30 09:00 17:30
09:00 1300 09.00 1300
Closed Closed
465 465
3 2
1500 - 1999 20600 - 2499 1500 - 1999
DVLA and On Line Lottery, Euro/Dollar On Demand Bureau De Change Nore
Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham

Population- 62668; Population aged 0 to 15 - 16018;
Population aged 16 to Retired - 39965, No. of Households
with at least one car or van - 12507,

Population - 80352; Population aged 0 to 15-19240;
Population aged 16 to Retired - 52383; No. of Households
with at least ane car of van - 16060

Poputation- 82405 Population Aged 0to 15 - 20260,
Population Aged 16 to Retired - 53992, No. of Households
with at least one car of van - 16148;

Greeting cards and Confectionery.

Greeting cards and Stationery

White goods e.q. washing machines.

The branch has level access. Internally there is a low-level
serving counter,

The branch has access via a ramp.

The branch has level access with a wide door. internaly, there)
is a fow-level writing desk

Thaere is several retailers within the area indluding a Café and
Convenience Store.

There is several retailers within the area induding &
Convenierice, Restaurants, Beauty, Clothes and Travel Agent

There is approximately 30 retailers within the area, induding|
Cafes, Newsagents and Small Supermarkets.

There is an ATM within 60 yards of the branch

There is an external ATM at the branch

There are limited parking fadlities available nearby

There is a bus stop within 110 yards of the branch,

None

The tercain between the branches is varied,

The terrain between the branches is level,

0.50

080

There are metered parking facilities available outside the
branch.

There are parking facilities avaitable within the surrounding
roads.

Transport for London

Transport for London

41

279 and 259

Every 6 minutes

Every 6 minutes

There is a bus stop within 110 yards of the branch.

There is a bus stop within 200 yards of the branch,

7 minutes

8 minutes

Al Transport for London buses are low-floor vehicles. Floor
fevel buses enable all customers, including wheelchair users,
people with buggies, people with assistance dogs and pecple|
with other mobility impairments to get on and off easily.

Al Transport for London buses are low-floor vehicles. Floor
level buses enable all customers, including wheelchair users,
people with buggies, people with assistance dogs and peopl
with other mobility impairments to get on and off easily

Children and young people under the age of 18 in fuli-tme
education and those over 60 and registered disabled holding
Freedom Passes are entitled to free travel on London pubfic
transport. There are further concessions for residents on
Incorne Support.

Children and young people under the age of 18 in full-time
education and those over 60 and registered disabled holdingj
Freedom Passes are entitfed to free travel on London pubtic
transport. There are further concessions for residents on
income Support,

None

None

There s a free standing pillar box outside branch.

Bruce Grove

Stamford Hilt

There is a pillar box within 220 yards of the branch.

There is a pillar box available outside branch.

Mount Pleasant Road

5307532 High Road Stamford Hill BO Tottenham

Bruce Grove 250-252 Stamford Hill

London London London
Greater London

N17 98X N166TW N1767Q




Page 67

Branch Access Report

Branch Pioposed for Closure

st Alternative Branch

2nd Alternative Branch

West Green Road (434)

Hatringay

Wood Green

434 West Green Road

508 Green Lanes

191 High Road

Wood Green
South Tottenham
London London London
MN153PT N4 TAW N226DZ
SPSO Crown Crown

Yes

17:30

i 09:00
02:00 17.30 09:30 17:30 09:30 1730
03:00 17:30 02:00 17:30 09:00 1730
09:00 17:30 0900 17:30 09:00 17:30
03:00 1730 0900 1730 08:00 17:30
03.00 12:30 09:00 1230 0900 17:30
Closed Closed Closed
46 455 51
2 7 12
1500 - 1999 3500 - 3999 6000 - 6459
| None None DVLA and On Dermand Currency
| Tottenham Tottenham Hornsey and Wood Green

Population - 79763, Population Aged 0-15 - 20%; Population
Aged 16-Retired - 68%; Population Retired - 10%; Housefiolds
with T or imore car of van - 50%

Population - 78145; Population Aged 0-15 - 18%; Population
Aged 16-Retired - 70%; Population Retired - 11%; Households
with 1 or more car of van - 45%

Poputatiorn - 65321; Poputation Aged 0-15 - 19%; Population
Aged 16-Retired - 68%; Population Retired - 12%; Households
with T of more car of van - 53%

Stationers

Mini post shop browser

Mini post shop browser

There are steps at the entrance to this branch,

The branch has access via a ramp.

This branch has level access, with a wide door. Intemally
there is a low-level serving counter and a low-level writing
desk,

This is a muiti shopping area

This is a multi shopping area.

Wood Green is a major central shopping area with two
shopping centres and all the major UK retailers.

None

There is free patking in nearby side streets for 2 hours.

There are several ATM machines nearby

There are several free ATM machines nearby,

1 Varied terrain

Vatied terrain. All side roads from the main route have
dropped kerbs and there are pelican crossings for navigating
the main through road

07

035

There are parking Tacilities in nearby streets.

Thete are parking fadilities nearby,

Transport for London

Transport for London

25,141

67,141, W4

Bus stop is located 75 yards from the branch,

Every 2 -4 minutes

Bus 67 and 147 every 4-7 minutes. Bus W4 every 10-11
minutes.

Bus stop is focated 220 yards from the branch

Bus stop is located 400 yards from the branch.

10 minutes

16 minutes

All Transport for London buses are low-floor vehidles. Floor
tevel buses enable all customers, incuding wheelchair users,
people with buggies, people with assistance dogs and people|
with other mobility impairments to get on and off easily.

All Transport for London buses are low-floor vehicles, Floor
level buses enable alt customers, including wheelchair users,
people with buggies, people with assistance dogs and people}
with other mobility impairments to get on and off easily.

Children and young people under the age of 18 in full-time
education and those over 60 and registered disabled holding]
Freedom Passes are entitled to free travel on London public
transport. There are further concessions for residents on
Income Support.

Children and young pecple under the age of 18 in full-time
education and those over 60 and registered disabled holding|
Freedom Passes are entitled to free travel on London pubtic
transport. There are further concessions for residents on
income Suppoit.

None

None

Freestanding postbox outside branch.

Turnpike La‘ne

There is a postbox inside the branch.

West Green Road

There is an integral post box in the wall of the branch.

Lordship Lane

105 Turnpike Lane 108 West Green Road Wood Green
South Tottenham

London London London

N8 ODY N155aA N22 5DE




Page 68

Branch Access Report

Branch Proposed for Closure 15t Atternative Branich

2nd Atternathve Branch

Lordship Lane

Wood Green

Wood Gigen Wood Green 191 High Road
Wood Green
London tondon Londen
NI26NL N22 SDE N22 607
5PSO. Crown

Yes

0930 1730
9900 1730
0900 1730
09.00 1730
0900 17.30
Closed
495
12
1000- 1499 1500 - 1999 6000 -6499
Nore Norie DVLAand On Demand Currency
Homsey and Wood Green Homsey and Wood Green Hornsey and Wood Green

Population - 67939. Population Aged 0-15 - 20% Population Aged 16
Retited - 66% Population Retired - 12% Households with T or more

Population - 71624, Population Aged 0-15 - 21% Papulation Aged 16-
Retired - 65% Population Retired - 12% Households with 1 of more car ar

Popilation - 65321; Population Aged 0-15 - 19% Population Aged 1
Retired - 66% Population Retired - 12% Households with 1 or more

catorvan- 52% van- 51% <ator van- 53%
Newsagent and stationers Newsagent and stationers. None

This branch has access via a ramp. internally there is spacefora

This branch has levef access. wheeichair

This branch has level access

Parade of shops - Café, niewsagents, take away This is 3 muiti shopping atea

This branch is located in a high street location with a pharmacy,
flewsagent, supermarket, several banks and a travel agency

None

There are several free ATM machines within 100 yards,

Mainly level terrain

Varied terrain

a5

06

There is patking directly outside the branch. There is parking in nearby streets.

There is parking about 100 yards away from the branch. There is a
multhstorey car park nearby

{ Transport for London

Transport for London

Route Bus 243 towards Wood Green.

Route Bus 243 towards Waterloo, Route Bus W3 towards
Northumberland Park Route Bus 144 towards Edmonton Green Bus
Station

Every6- 7 minutes

Every2- 4 minutes

Bus stop is located 250 yards from the branch, Bus stop is located 75 yards from the branch

Bus stop is located 550 yards from the branch

12 minutes.

S minutes.

Al Transport for London buses are low-floor vehicles Floor level buses
enable all customers. including wheelchair users. people with buggies,
peaple with assistance dogs and people with other mobility impairments
to get on and off easily

Al Transport for London buses are low-floor vehicles. Floor level
buses enable ali customers, including wheelchair users, people with
buggies, people with assistance dogs and people with othes mobility
impairments to get on and off easily

Children and young people under the age of 18 in fulltime education and
those over 60 and registered disabled holding Freedom Passes are
entitled to free travel on London public transport. There are further
concessions for residents on Income Support

Children and young people under the age of 18 in fulltime
education and those over 60 and registered disabled holding
Freedom Passes are entitied to free travel on London public
transport There are further concessions for residents on Income
Support.

None

None

Freestanding post box outside the branch

Wall mounted post box outside the branch

Turnpike Lane Great Cambridge Road High Road 358
105 Tumnpike Lanie Jottenham 358 High Road
London London London

N8 oY N177iH N22 83w




Page 69

Appendix D — Proposed Post Office closures in Haringey with Indices of
Deprivation.

Indices of Deprivation 2007 and Haringey Post Offices
Rank of IMD
Haringey SOAs

irottenham

o
Highgate
++ Postoffice

4 Post Office proposed for closure

W

Indices of Deprivation 2007

Source: Communites and Local Governrnent 2007 WD Rak

Flease note: Maps on thig site have been reproduced from Ordnance B Amongst 5% most deprived SOAs in England
Survey material with the perrnission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of B 510% most deprived

the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office @ Crown copyright. 10-20%  most deprived

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to 20%+ most deprived

prosecution or civil proceedings
London Borough of Haringey 1000191599 2008



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Chairâ•Žs welcome, opening remarks and explanation of process
	5 Scoping Paper -  Scrutiny Review of Post Office Closures in Haringey (the national Network Change Programme)
	Government Consultation Document
	Appendix B - London Plan & Consultation
	Appendix C - Branch Access Reports for 6 closures
	Appendix D


